
 

1 

 

 
 

Notice is hereby given that on Friday, May 10, 2024, the Board of Directors of 

Tarrant Appraisal District will meet in open session beginning at 8:00 a.m. 

at 2500 Handley-Ederville Road, Fort Worth, Texas 
 

The meeting will also be broadcast live on Facebook. The link for the broadcast: 

https://www.facebook.com/TarrantAD 

 

AGENDA 

1. Call to Order 

2. Verify Presence of Quorum and Posting of Meeting Notice 

3. Pledges of Allegiance 

4. Invocation 

5. Recognize Visitors; Hear Public Comments 

6. Information Items 

a. Report by Taxpayer Liaison Officer 

b. Report by Chief Appraiser 

i. Staff Introduction – Eric Watkins 

ii. Public Speaking Engagements 
iii. Public Surveys 

iv. Preliminary Totals 

v. Protests & Appeals 

vi. Litigation Costs & Comparison 

vii. Training & Education 

viii. Ransomware & Recovery 

7. Action Items 

a. Action regarding approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes – April 22, 2024 

b. Consideration and action regarding accepting the Tarrant Appraisal District Annual 

Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 2023 

c. Consider approval of a resolution to adjust limits for committed funds and/or to commit 

unspent and unassigned funds to existing committed funds 

d. Discussion and possible action on proposed policy change concerning nepotism rules in 

TAD Personnel Policy manual  

e. Discussion and possible action on proposed policy change concerning limitation on 

information system purchases in the TAD Purchasing Policies and Procedures manual 



 

2 

 

f. Consider and possible action on contract for printing/mailing/email services for Tarrant 

Appraisal Review Board hearing notices and final/agreed orders and TAD mailings in the 

future 

g. Consider and possible action on contract for homestead audit services 

 

8. Discussion Items 

 

a. 2025 Budget Workshop – discussion only; no action to be taken 

 

9. Recess to executive/closed session pursuant to the following part(s) of the Texas 

Open Meetings Act Government Code Ch. 551, for the following purposes: 

 
Section 551.076 – Deliberation regarding security devices, security software or security 

audits. 

 

10. Return to Open Session for Possible Action on Items Deliberated on in 

Executive/Closed Session 

 

Reconvene in open session for possible further discussion and possible action on items 

deliberated in executive session related to security devices, security software and/or 
security audits. 

 

11.  Action Items, cont. 

 

a. Consider and possible action on purchase or lease of PC’s and/or laptops and consider 

moving committed funds to the general fund for purchase of this item 

b. Consider authorizing the Chief Appraiser to engage in an Interlocal Agreement with 

Region 8 Education Service Center to allow for TAD’s entry into The Interlocal 

Purchasing System (TIPS) for future purchases 

c. Consider and possible action on a lease agreement for Voice Over IP phone 

software/hardware for the main TAD office and consider moving committed funds to the 

general fund for this action 

d. Consider 2024 budget amendments based on actions taken by the board from today’s 

meeting 

 

12. Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn 

Next meeting date: 8:00 AM Friday, June 14, 2024, at Fort Worth City Council Chambers 

located at the Old City Hall building at 200 Texas St, Fort Worth, TX on the second floor.  

Metered parking is available around the building or at the Fort Worth Convention Center 

Garage located at 1200 Houston St, across from the Convention Center 

 

Joe Don Bobbitt 

Executive Director/Chief Appraiser 

 



 

3 

 

The public is invited to address the Board during the Public Comments period under Agenda 

Item 5 regarding any item on the Agenda and other issues under the Board’s jurisdiction. 

During the Public Comments period, the Chairman will allow each speaker five minutes but 

may expand the time as needed if doing so will not interfere with the Board’s completing 

its business and adjourning its meeting at a reasonable time. The Board may refuse to hear 
comments on subjects not reasonably related to items on the Agenda, to policies and 

procedures of Tarrant Appraisal District or Tarrant Appraisal Review Board, or to other 

issues under the Board’s jurisdiction. The Board may not respond to comments regarding 

items not on the Agenda. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

4 

 

Information Item 6(b):  Report by Chief Appraiser 

Chief Appraiser Report 
 

Staff Introduction: Eric Watkins, Director of Residential. 

Preliminary Estimates:  

• Released April 30th 

• 7% overall increase 

• Spreadsheet attached of historical totals and preliminary estimates 

Protest and Appeals:  

• Deadline extended from May 15th until May 24th  

• As of 4/30/24- 4,093 Online Value Negotiations, 3,277 accepted, 216 pending, 580 rejected 

• As of 4/30/24- 3,584 protests filed 2329 resolved by staff and 1255 to be scheduled for hearing 

Litigation:  

CAD Total Suits filed for 2023 
Total Spent on Litigation 
(Not Including Reports) $/suit 

In House 
Counsel 

Dallas 3,200 $860,000  $268.75  No 

Hays 197 $107,000  $543.15  No 

Denton 698 $509,504  $729.95  No 

Tarrant 1,798 $1,500,000  $834.26  No 
Fort 
Bend 984 $876,700  $890.96  Yes (1) 

Burnet 55 $50,000  $909.09  No 

Grayson 61 $57,000  $934.43  No 

Gregg 102 $102,000  $1,000.00  No 

Travis 2,465 $2,644,116  $1,072.66  Yes (1) 

Bexar 1,720 $2,200,000  $1,279.07  Yes (2) 

Jefferson 250 $363,750  $1,455.00  No 

Harris 9,605 $15,000,000  $1,561.69  Yes (8) 

Collin 793 $1,542,499  $1,945.14  No 

Johnson 27 $70,834  $2,623.48  No 

Cameron 60 $259,937  $4,332.28  No 

Scurry 6 $31,335  $5,222.50  No 

Wilbarger 1 $15,201  $15,201.00  No 

 

 

 



 

5 

 

Training & Education:  

• Attended 2-day public purchasing class: Chief, Director of Admin, IT Director, and purchasing 

agent 

Recovery:  

• Value Negotiation and website online April 24th- extended protest deadline Until May 24th  

• Website is being monitored for traffic and upgraded as necessary, several bugs have been found 

and corrected 

• All servers have been restored 

• Desktops wiped and OS reinstalled 

• Implementing professional cybersecurity training and testing program 

 

Public Speaking Engagements: 

• 3/22/2024 - Tarrant County Realtor Zoom Call 

• 4/2/2024 - Northeast Tarrant County, Real Estate Agents, Brokers, Title Companies 

• 4/4/2024 - Meadowbrook Neighborhood Association 

• 4/6/2024 - La Gran Plaza - Resource Fair, City of Fort Worth - Jeanette Martinez 

• 4/16/2024 - Southeast Tarrant County, Real Estate Agents, Brokers 

• 4/17/2024 - Tarrant County Tax Assessor-Collector, Truth-in-Taxation Training 

• 4/18/2024 - Northwest Tarrant County, Real Estate Agents, Brokers, Title Companies, 

Insurance 

• 5/2/2024 - Northeast Tarrant County 

Public Surveys:  

• Blue Cards 

o 830 - Five Stars 

o 7 - Four stars 

o 3 - One Stars 

o 188 - No stars but positive and good comments 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

6 

 

 



 

7 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

8 

 

Action Item 7(a):  Action regarding approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes – 

April 22, 2024 

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

 Approve April 22, 2024 Board of Directors meeting minutes as presented 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



9 

Tarrant Appraisal District 

Board of Directors Meeting Minutes 

April 22, 2024 

This meeting was conducted in compliance with the Open Meetings Act as written in statute 

and was broadcast live on Facebook. A quorum of the members of the Board attended in 

person at the TAD offices. 

These minutes are a summary of the only subjects the Board addressed and the actions it took. 

For details, see the agenda and video posted on TAD’s website at this URL: 

https://www.tad.org/board-of-directors and Video recording posted at:  

https://www.facebook.com/TarrantAD 

Members present: 

Ms. Wendy Burgess, Tax Assessor Collector (arrived at 8:16am) 

Mr. Alan Blaylock (left at 10:15am) 

Mr. Rich DeOtte 

Mr. Gary Losada 

Ms. Gloria Peña, Secretary 

Mr. Vince Puente, Chair 

Also Participating: 

Mr. Joe Don Bobbitt, Chief Appraiser 

Mr. Brad Patrick, Director of Administration 

Mr. Matthew Tepper, Attorney  

Vince Puente called the meeting to order at 8:02am, verified a quorum was present and the 

notice was posted timely. After pledges and the Invocation, the Board took up the following 

agenda items: 

5. Recognize Visitors; Hear Public Comments

Mr. Bennett and Mr. Crouch spoke. 

6. Action Items:

a. Action regarding approval of Board of Directors meeting minutes – March 1,

2024; March 25, 2024; April 1, 2024; 

Mr. Blaylock moved to approve the three drafts as presented and Mr. DeOtte seconded. The 

vote was unanimous, 5-0 and the motion passed. 



10 

b. Action on proposed title and salary changes for 2024 TAD budget

Ms. Peña moved to approve the staff recommendation to allow the Chief Appraiser to adjust 

job titles and salaries as an amendment to the 2024 budget but with no additional cost as noted 

in the packet. Mr. DeOtte seconded this motion and the vote was unanimous, 5-0. The motion 

passed. 

c. Review and possible action on contract for upcoming Board of Directors at

large election with the Tarrant County Elections Administrator 

Mr. DeOtte moved to approve the contract between TAD and the Tarrant County Elections 

Administrator to conduct the May 4th Board of Directors election (and potential runoff election) 

and authorize the Chief Appraiser to pay the deposit amount of $484,110 within the allotted 

timeframe per the contract to initiate the agreement. Also, to send a notice to the entities of a 

budget amendment thirty (30) days prior. Mr. Losada seconded. The vote was unanimous, 5-0 

and the motion passed. 

7. Discussion Items

a. 2025 proposed TAD budget initial discussion

This item was discussed however, no action was taken. 

8. Recess to executive/closed session pursuant to the following part(s) of the Texas

Open Meetings Act Government Code Ch. 551, for the following purposes: 

At 9:10am, the Board recessed into Executive Session as provided in Item 8 of the Agenda. 

Section 551.076 – Deliberation regarding security devices, security software or security audits. 

9. Return to Open Session for Possible Action on Items Deliberated on in

Executive/Closed Session 

At 11:15am, the Board returned to Open Session as provided in Item 9 of the Agenda. No action 

was taken. 

10. Action Items, cont’d.

a. Consider and possible action on engagement with a cybersecurity

consultant and consider moving committed funds to the general fund for

purchase of this item

Ms. Peña moved to authorize the Chief Appraiser to engage a cybersecurity consultant for a 

cost not to exceed $25,000 and if needed, transfer up to $25,000 from the CAMA committed 



11 

funds to pay for the item. Mr. DeOtte seconded and the vote was, 4-0 as Mr. Blaylock had left 

the meeting. 

b. Consider and possible action on purchase of network

equipment/installation and consider moving committed funds to the

general fund for purchase of this item

Ms. Peña moved to authorize the Chief Appraiser to purchase network equipment/

installation for a cost not to exceed $230,000 and to transfer up to $230,000 from the 

CAMA committed fund to the general fund for costs associated with this purchase if 

necessary. Mr. Losada seconded and the motion passed 4-0. 

c. Consider a resolution to adopt an agreement to become a member of the

Local Government Purchasing Cooperative and to authorize the Chair, Chief

Appraiser or his designee the authority to execute the Interlocal

Participation Agreement

Mr. DeOtte moved not to contract with the Texas Association of School Boards (TASB). Mr. 

Puente seconded and the motion passed 3-1, with Mr. DeOtte, Mr. Losada and Mr. Puente 

voting yes and Ms. Peña voting no.  

d. Consider and possible action on purchase of Voice Over IP phone

software/hardware for the main TAD office and consider moving

committed funds to the general fund for purchase of this item

Ms. Peña moved to authorize the Chief Appraiser to take all action to seek a lease of purchase 

for Voice Over IP phone software/hardware including publishing an RFP. A friendly amendment 

was offered by Mr. Puente and accepted by Ms. Peña that a funding out clause be included. Mr. 

DeOtte seconded and the motion was passed unanimously, 4-0. 

11. Propose Future Agenda Items; Set Next Meeting Date; Adjourn

No future agenda items were proposed; the next Meeting is scheduled for May 10, 2024; the 

meeting adjourned at 11:38am. 

____________________________________ 

Gloria Peña, Board Secretary 

____________________________________ 

Vince Puente, Board Chair  



12 

Action Item 7(b):  Consideration and action regarding accepting the Tarrant Appraisal 

District Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year Ended December 31, 

2023 

For the Board’s review and consideration, enclosed is the District’s Fiscal Year 2023 Annual 

Comprehensive Financial Report (ACFR) prepared by the District’s auditor, Pattillo, Brown & 

Hill, LLP and the District’s administrative staff. Following are a few of the audit results:  

• There were no findings or problems in TAD’s accounting and reporting

of its financial position and transactions

• TAD had $28,209,515 in revenues in FY 2023

• In FY 2023, TAD’s total expenditures were $28,380,458

• The FY 2023 fund balance is $11,377,298.  Of the $11,377,298 fund

balance, $9,808,704 is unassigned, constituting approximately 35% of

the $28,380,458. Specifically, $ 7,413,530 of the fund balance was

attributable to the Board-established contingency reserve which

represented 25.0% or three months of the 2023 amended budget.

 Representatives of Pattillo, Brown & Hill, LLP are available at the board meeting to provide 

additional information and answer any questions the Board may have. 

Staff Recommendation: 

Subject to the Board’s review of the fiscal year 2023 audit and satisfactory 

responses to any questions the Board may have, accept the Tarrant Appraisal 

District Annual Comprehensive Financial Report for the Fiscal Year ended 

December 31, 2023 



13 

Action Item 7(c):  Consider approval of a resolution to adjust limits for committed funds 

and/or to commit unspent and unassigned funds to existing committed funds 

Current Fund Balances as of 3/31/24 as of 12/31/23 

Assigned for Prepaid Items     $138,725 $115,341 

Committed for Software Purchases    $853,253 $853,253 

Committed for Building Maintenance $305,860 $350,000 

Committed for Technology $250,000 $250,000 

Approved to move to General Fund   ($235,000) 

Committed for Pension Contribution   - - 

Unassigned – Contingencies – 25% of Budget $7,357,227 $7,413,530 

Unassigned   $3,321,021 $2,395,174 

$11,991,086 $11,377,298 

Beyond the Board-mandated contingency fund, there is approximately $3.3 million in 

unassigned monies available as part of TAD’s current fund balance.  A portion of this current 

figure is based on 2024 revenue exceeding budgeted expenditures as of the end of the first 

quarter, so it would be prudent to use 2023-year-end figures as a guide.  With technology 

upgrades, election costs and other needs in the coming months, the opportunity exists to 

commit this unassigned money to funds for these, and other, uses.  The current fund balances 

for the Software Purchases, Building Maintenance, Technology and Pension Contribution Funds 
are listed above.  The Board has already allowed the transfer of an amount not to exceed 

$235,000 from the Technology Fund earlier this year that has yet to be notated.  Currently the 

Building Maintenance and Technology Funds have a cap of $350,000 and $250,000, 

respectively.  The Software and Pension Funds do not have a cap.   

Staff Recommendation: 

We ask that the board consider approving a resolution to adjust caps to the 

committed funds and to commit money to these funds as they see fit. 



 

14 

 

RESOLUTION 2024-1 

FOR  

DESIGNATION OF EXCESS FUNDS 

WHEREAS, section 6.06(j), Texas Property Tax Code, requires that excess must either be 

returned to the taxing units or credited towards the payments due the District by the 

taxing units, if such excess funds are not otherwise obligated to be spent; and,  

 

WHEREAS, the audit of the District’s finances for 2023 was conducted by its outside certified 

public accountant and based upon the audit the amount of remaining uncommitted 

excess funds is $2,395,174; and, 

 

WHEREAS, the Board of Directors determined that it would be in the public interest to assure the 

long-term financial interest of the District to designate the excess funds reported in 

the 2023 budget for the following purposes,   

 

NOW, THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED BY THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF THE 

TARRANT APPRAISAL DISTRICT: 

 

That the cap for the committed funds be set at the following amounts listed: 

Software Purchase Fund    amount of $____________ 

Technology Fund     amount of $____________ 

Building Maintenance Fund    amount of $____________  

Pension Contribution Fund   amount of $____________ 

 

AND 

 

That the excess funds resulting after the 2023 budget of the Tarrant Appraisal District is hereby 

appropriated for following purposes in the amounts listed: 

 Software Purchase Fund    amount of $____________ 

Technology Fund     amount of $____________ 

Building Maintenance Fund     amount of $____________  

Pension Contribution Fund   amount of $____________ 

 

          

RESOLVED THIS     10th     DAY OF MAY, 2024. 

 

_________________________________________ 

Vince Puente, Chairman, Board of Directors  

 
ATTEST: 

 

_________________________________________ 

Gloria Pena, Secretary, Board of Directors  



 

15 

 

Action Item 7(d):  Discussion and possible action on proposed policy change concerning 

nepotism rules in TAD Personnel Policy manual  

 

Section 3.0(E) of TAD’s Personnel Policy currently reads: 

E. Employment of Relatives  

(1) The Texas Property Tax Code prohibits certain relationships within Texas appraisal districts. 

No person related to a member of the District’s Board of Directors, the Chief Appraiser, or a 

member of the Appraisal Review Board, within the third degree by blood or second degree by 

marriage (as defined below), may be employed by TAD.  

(2) To prevent family or similar relationships from influencing employment, job assignment, work 

scheduling, performance evaluation, advancement, and other personnel and operational 

matters, employees who are related within the third degree by blood or second degree by 

marriage (as defined below) shall not, as a general rule, be employed within the same 

department unless the relationship existed and was previously approved prior to the effective 

date of these policies and procedures. This prohibition applies to all regular full-time, part-time, 

seasonal or temporary, and other positions and contracts for temporary worker and other 

services. When an individual applies for employment and it is determined that a prohibited 

relationship would exist if the applicant is hired, an evaluation will be made to determine if the 

applicant should or can be hired and if the relationship would create a burden or hardship on 

TAD or its employees. This determination is within the sole discretion of the Chief Appraiser.  

(3) With the exception of those current TAD employees who are in a previously approved 

otherwise prohibited relationship prior to the effective date of these Personnel Policies and 

Procedures, prohibited relationships within the second degree of blood or marriage include the 

following: father, mother, husband, wife, son, daughter, brother, sister, grandparent, grandchild, 

father-in law, mother-in-law, son-in-law, daughter-in-law, brother-in-law, sister-in-law, 

grandparent-in-law, grandchild-in-law, stepfather, stepmother, stepson, stepdaughter, 

stepbrother, or stepsister.  

(4) TAD employees are responsible for promptly disclosing to both their department director and 

the human resource section any prohibited relationship they have established or are considering 

establishing. If two TAD employees become related as defined above, the Chief Appraiser and the 

department director will perform an evaluation to determine if one or both of the employees 

may remain employed. If it is determined by the Chief Appraiser and the department director 

that the relationship will not harm or affect the day-to-day activities of the District, the 

employees may be allowed to remain employed. If it is determined that one of the employees 

has to terminate his or her employment, the Chief Appraiser shall decide which employee will 

remain in his or her current position, giving due consideration to work history, performance 

evaluations, and other relevant factors including but not limited to what is in the best interest of 

TAD. This determination is within the sole discretion of the Chief Appraiser.  

(5) A person shall not be employed or promoted if such employment will place him or her in a 

position of supervising or being supervised by a member within the above defined relationships. 

No department director, manager, or supervisor shall use his or her position to try and influence 

another employee to hire a member of his or her immediate family. 



 

16 

 

(6) In addition to familial relationships, personal relationships and/or associations, the nature of 

which would lend them to favoritism, are also prohibited.  

(7) Notwithstanding any other provision of this section (E), the nepotism prohibitions applicable 

to the Chief Appraiser, to candidates for the position of Chief Appraiser, and to his or her relative 

are those set out in Chapters 6 and 41 of the Texas Tax Code, including, but not limited to, 

Sections 6.035 and 41.69, and in Sections 573.041of the Texas Government Code. 

 

In an effort to remove ambiguity in the policy, we offer the suggested changes to subsections 2 

& 4: 

 

(2) To prevent family or similar relationships from influencing employment, job assignment, work 

scheduling, performance evaluation, advancement, and other personnel and operational matters, 

employees related by the first degree of blood or marriage (parent/child or spouses) shall not be 

employed at TAD, regardless of department or position, nor shall employees who are related within the 

third degree by blood or second degree by marriage (as defined below) shall not, as a general rule, be 

employed within the same department unless the relationship described in this subsection existed and 

was previously approved prior to the effective date of these policies and procedures. This prohibition 

applies to all regular full-time, part-time, seasonal or temporary, and other positions and contracts for 

temporary worker and other services. When an individual applies for employment and it is determined 

that a prohibited relationship would exist if the applicant is hired, an evaluation will be made to 

determine if the applicant should or can be hired and if the relationship would create a burden or 

hardship on TAD or its employees. This determination is within the sole discretion of the Chief Appraiser 

 

(4) TAD employees are responsible for promptly disclosing to both their department director and the 

human resource section any prohibited relationship they have established or are considering 

establishing. If two TAD employees become related as defined above, the Chief Appraiser and the 

department director will perform an evaluation to determine if one or both of the employees may remain 

employed. If it is determined by the Chief Appraiser and the department director that the relationship 

will not harm or affect the day-to-day activities of the District, the employees may be allowed to remain 

employed. If current staffing allows, one employee may be moved to another department where a 

conflict does not exist.  If it is determined that one of the employees has to terminate his or her 

employment, the Chief Appraiser shall decide which employee will remain in his or her current position, 

giving due consideration to work history, performance evaluations, and other relevant factors including 

but not limited to what is in the best interest of TAD. This determination is within the sole discretion of 

the Chief Appraiser.  

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Approve amendments to Section 3.0(E)(2) and Section 3.0(E)(4) as noted above by 

highlights in the Tarrant Appraisal District Personnel Policy Manual. 

 



 

17 

 

Action Item 7(e):  Discussion and possible action on proposed policy change concerning 

limitation on information system purchases in the TAD Purchasing Policies and 

Procedures manual 

 

In an effort to streamline purchases for IS-related hardware and software, the following changes 

to Section 10.0 of the TAD Purchasing Policies and Procedures are proposed.  Any purchase 

over $50,000 would still require Board approval as mandated.  The proposed change would only 

remove the need for Board approval for purchases for Information Services-related items that 

total between $25,000 and $50,000.  The proposed changes are listed below, including 

necessary renumbering. 

10.0 Action by the Board of Directors 

10.1 The board of directors must approve all contracts and purchases subject to the competitive 

bidding process. 

10.2 For purchases related to information systems, the board of directors must approve all 

contracts and/or purchases that will be $25,000 or more.  Examples of information systems 

related items include but may not be limited to: hardware, software, third party software license 

agreements, hardware or software maintenance contracts, peripheral computer components 

and/or accessories, etc. 

10.2 For purchases of $50,000 or less, and that do not pertain to the purchase of information   

systems related items, the board of directors authorizes the purchasing agent to procure necessary 

goods and services as provided for in the district’s current year adopted budget.   

10.3 After a complete and thorough review of all quotations, qualified bids, proposals, or 

qualification statements, the Chief Appraiser or his/her designee will provide information, 

summaries, tabulations and award recommendations to the TAD board of directors when 

applicable.  The board may review the information provided and ask additional questions to gain a 

clear understanding and do one of the following: 

10.3.1 For bids, award the bid to either the lowest responsible bidder or to the    

bidder who provides goods or services at the best value for the district, or reject 

any and all bids and re-advertise for new bids; 

10.3.2 For proposals, award the contract to the responsible offeror whose proposal 

is determined to be the most advantageous to the district considering the relative 

importance of price and the other evaluation factors included in the request for 

proposals. TAD’s board of directors reserves the right to reject all, or a portion of  

all, proposals submitted; 

10.3.3 For defined professional services, award the contract to the professional 

service provider based on the qualifications and demonstrated competence to 

perform the services for a fair and reasonable fee. Fees under the contract may not 

exceed any maximum provided by law.  For architects, engineers, and land 



 

18 

 

surveyors, fees are subject to negotiation at a fair and reasonable price. (Sec. 2254 

TGC) 

 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Approve amendment to Section 10.0 as noted above by highlights in the Tarrant 

Appraisal District Personnel Policy Manual. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

19 

 

Action Item 7(f):  Consider and possible action on contract for printing/mailing/email 

services for Tarrant Appraisal Review Board hearing notices and final/agreed orders and 

TAD mailings in the future 

 

In an effort to improve efficiency, save/repurpose labor cost and comply with electronic 

communication statutes, TAD has sought an outside service to assist with notice mailings.  

Initially, we are looking at using the service for notices and orders coming from the Tarrant 

Appraisal Review Board.  Quadient is a vendor that specializes in this service for many 

companies and organizations, including appraisal districts.  The following data was supplied by 
their office for review. 

The initial costs for the service entail a 60-month lease of the software platform at a cost of 

$2,131.62 per month.  This is $25,579.44 annually and $127,897.20 for the life of the 
agreement.  The cost includes the deployment of the software and training of up to 40 hours.  

The agreement with Quadient would be based on State of Texas Smart Buy Contract 985-C1.  

Additionally, there are costs per mailing based on the pricing structure below.  Fees and 

postage would be invoiced monthly. 

 

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

Authorize the Chief Appraiser to engage in a 60-month contract at a base cost of 

$2,131.62 per month with Quadient for printing, mailing and emailing services 

(including software) for current Tarrant Appraisal Review Board hearing notices 

and final/agreed orders and, potentially, other TAD mailings as practicable.  

Additional costs on a per mailing or per page basis are to be managed by TAD 

staff to remain within TAD’s annual budgets.  

 

Budget Note: 

This is not a specifically budgeted service within the 2024 budget, but cost will be 

covered by budgeted print and mailing costs. 

 

 



 

20 

 

 

 



 

21 

 

 

 

 



 

22 

 

 

 



 

23 

 

 

 



 

24 

 

 

 



 

25 

 

 



 

26 

 

Action Item 7(g):  Consider and possible action on contract for homestead audit services 

 

Senate Bill 1801, passed in late 2023, requires an appraisal district to have a formal plan for 

periodic review of each residential homestead exemption granted under Texas Property Tax 

Code Section 11.13.  Even prior to passage of this bill, TAD staff diligently worked to ensure 
exemptions were applied properly and to follow the proper channels when investigating and, if 

necessary, removing an exemption that should not be allowed on a property.  The current year 

marked the first year under the new bill and internal staff set out to review the first section of the 

county as part of the five-year plan.   

 

Outside companies also offer services to review homestead exemptions.  The outside vendor is 

able to take a more deliberate and narrowed approach to reviewing the properties and alerting 

TAD staff of specific properties that need to be reviewed more closely.  Use of this service frees 
TAD staff to focus more on customer service and processing current applications and then 

focus on researching the specific accounts that are flagged by the homestead audit vendor. 

 

TrueRoll and Linebarger Goggan Blair & Sampson are two vendors that provide this service.  

They have provided the enclosed proposals to work with TAD to review our records and provide 

a homestead audit.  After reviewing the proposals, staff recommends we engage with TrueRoll.  

Their process involves working and meeting with TAD staff to discuss our processes and to 

review the results of their investigation.  Beyond identifying fraudulent exemptions, they also 
work to identify properties that do not have an exemption that may qualify.  TrueRoll’s process 

reviews the entire county in the year of engagement and they have two pricing options – a base 

cost for approximately $418,000 and one with the AppVetter service (application screening tool 

for new applications) bundled for approximately $467,000.  Linebarger’s proposal is described 

as more of a turnkey approach, but is a three-year commitment with a cost of approximately 

$2.9 million.   

 

 
Staff Recommendation:  

Authorize movement of $417,783.42 or $466,281.55 from a committed fund to the 

general fund for use by the Chief Appraiser for this item.  Further, authorize the 
Chief Appraiser to engage with TrueRoll’s homestead exemption monitoring 

service at the cost of $417,783.42 or $466,281.55 for one year.  

 

Budget Note: 

This is not a specifically budgeted service within the 2024 budget.  Committed 

funds are sought for the purchase of this service. 

 

 

 

 



 

27 

 

 



 

28 

 

 



 

29 

 

 



 

30 

 

 

                                                      

 

     



 

31 

 

 



 

32 

 

 



 

33 

 

 

 

 



 

34 

 

Discussion Item 8(a):  2025 Budget Workshop 

After seeking direction at the prior Board meeting, staff continued to review projected needs and 

expenses for the 2025 budget year.  The attached documents include: 

• Proposed 2025 Budget with staff’s attempt to maintain a near zero increase over the 

2024 Budget; this projection shows a 0.78% increase over 2024’s budget overall, with a 

0.02% increase for the taxing entity portion (pgs. 35-38) 

• Proposed 2025 Budget with same direction, plus the added IS hardware/software needs 

discussed throughout 2023 & 2024 + estimated funds for the projected new CAMA 

software; this projection shows a 16.85% increase over 2024’s budget overall, with a 

16.64% increase for the taxing entity portion (pgs. 39-42) 

• Listing of the added IS hardware/software needs provided to show the difference 

between the two projections (pg. 43) 

• Current Contract List for Items/Services in Excess of $50,000 (pgs. 44-45) 

 

Staff is available to discuss projections and directions with the Board 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

35 

 

 



 

36 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

37 

 

 



 

38 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

39 

 

 



 

40 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

41 

 

 



 

42 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

43 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

44 

 

PURCHASE AGREEMENTS OVER 

$50K  
FOR 2024    

     

PAYEE 
TYPE OF 

SERVICES 

BOD 

APPROVAL 

2023 TOTAL 

EXPENDITURES 

2024 

ESTIMATED 

TOTAL 

PROJECTED TO 

BE PAID 

Carasoft 

DocuSign 

Platform 

Edition 

Online 

Signature 

Capability 
1/12/2024 n/a $154,162.12  

Aumentum 

Technologies, a 

Division of 

Manatron, Inc. 

EULAs for 

Marshall & 

Swift, Moore 

Precision Data 

3/1/2024 $77,279.79  $92,705.00  

Aumentum 

Technologies, a 

Division of 

Manatron, Inc. 

CAMA 

Software 
11/10/2023 $307,228.00  $313,373.00  

CoStar Realty 

Information, 

Inc. 

Subscription 

for CoStar 

Suite data 

11/10/2023 $74,331.52  $78,586.20  

Higginbotham 

Group 

Insurance 

consulting 

services 

2/9/2024 n/a $50,000.00  

Improving 

Dallas  

PO#12995Rev 

IS Contract 

Work 
3/1/2024 n/a $45,500.00  

Improving 

Dallas  

PO#13008Rev 

IS Contract 

Work 
2/9/2024 n/a $49,400.00  



 

45 

 

Improving 

Dallas  

PO#13066 

IS Contract 

Work 
1/12/2024 n/a $114,999.60  

Improving 

Dallas  

PO#13066 

IS Contract 

Work 
1/12/2024 n/a $114,999.60  

Improving 

Dallas  

PO#13100 

IS Contract 

Work 
3/25/2024 n/a $40,000.00  

Low Swinney 

Evans & James 

PLLC 

Legal services 5/13/2022 $34,373.29  $500,000.00  

McCreary, 

Veselka, Bragg 

& Allen, P.C. 

Legal services 3/1/2024 $31,820.42  $35,000.00  

Nichols, 

Jackson, 

Dillard, Hagar 

& Smith, L.L.P. 

Legal services 8/12/2022 $479,350.72  $500,000.00  

Perdue 

Brandon 

Fielder Collins 

& Mott, L.L.P. 

Legal services 6/11/2021 $608,590.98  $500,000.00  

Pictometry 

International 

Corp. 

Aerial 

Photography 
8/14/2020 $347,506.25  $347,506.25  

Pritchard & 

Abbott, Inc. 

Valuation 

consulting 
11/18/2019 $282,800.00  $285,600.00  

Tarrant County 

Security - 

Sheriff Deputy 

assigned to 

TAD 

8/13/2021 $119,730.55  $129,756.00  

Tarrant County Elections 4/22/2024 n/a $645,470.34  

SIGIS, LLC 
GIS Consulting 

Services 
2/9/2024 n/a $88,000.00  

 

 

 

 

 



 

46 

 

Action Item 11(a):  Consider and possible action on purchase or lease of PC’s and/or 

laptops and consider moving committed funds to the general fund for purchase of this 

item 

 

Based on review of TAD’s current infrastructure by both internal staff and industry experts, staff 

seeks to purchase or lease PC’s and/or laptops as replacements for aged equipment. 

 

 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Authorize the transfer of an amount not to exceed $ ____________ from a 

committed fund to the general fund for the following action: 

 

 

Authorize the Chief Appraiser to purchase necessary PC’s and/or laptops for a 

cost not to exceed $______________ 

 

Or 

 

Authorize the Chief Appraiser to engage in a lease for PC’s and/or laptops for 

______ years at a cost not to exceed $_______________ 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 



 

47 

 

Action Item 11(b):  Consider authorizing the Chief Appraiser to engage in an Interlocal 

Agreement with Region 8 Education Service Center to allow for TAD’s entry into The 

Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) for future purchases 

 

After continued review of infrastructure, TAD’s phone system is dated and no longer supported 

by the vendor.  Staff has found a proposed vendor via an Interlocal CoOp that can provide new 

hardware and supported software.  In order to use this cooperative’s pricing, TAD must enter 

into an interlocal agreement with the organization.  As an appraisal district, we qualify to join 

The Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS) program.  Becoming a member of the cooperative 

requires approval from the Board.  This will be beneficial in not only this current proposed 

purchase, but will increase TAD’s ability to review vendor pricing in the future when making 

purchases.   

 

 

Staff Recommendation: 

 

Approve the Chief Appraiser to enter into an Interlocal Agreement with Region 8 

Education Service Center and their cooperative purchasing service known as The 

Interlocal Purchasing System (TIPS). 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 



 

48 

 

 
 

 

 



 

49 

 

 
 

 



 

50 

 

 
 

 



 

51 

 

Action Item 11(c):  Consider and possible action on a lease agreement for Voice Over IP 

phone software/hardware for the main TAD office and consider moving committed funds 

to the general fund for this action 

 

After continued review of infrastructure, TAD’s phone system is dated and no longer supported 

by the vendor.  Staff has found a proposed vendor via an Interlocal CoOp that can provide new 

hardware and supported software.  If approval is made for the previously listed action item, TAD 

would seek to enter into a 5-year agreement with Vested Networks for an annual cost not to 

exceed $80,000 to provide phone hardware and software for the district.   

 

 

Staff Recommendation:   

 

Authorize the Chief Appraiser to seek the purchase of VOIP phone hardware and 

software through a five-year contract through The Interlocal Purchasing System 

(TIPS) cooperative for a cost not to exceed $80,000 annually.  TAD staff will make 

efforts to use budgeted funds in 2024 to pay for these costs.  However, the Board 

further authorizes transfer of up to $80,000 from the CAMA committed fund to the 

general fund for costs associated with this purchase for the initial year of 2024.   

 

 

Budget Note:   

 

For the initial year, committed funds from the CAMA fund would be requested to 

cover this cost if 2024 budgeted funds cannot be used.  For future years, this will 

be a budgeted item presented to the Board annually. 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 

 

 

 

 

 

 
 

 



 

52 

 

Action Item 11(d):  Consider 2024 budget amendments based on actions taken by the 

board from today’s meeting 

 

Based on fund transfers and authorization for purchases that may occur during today’s meeting, 

it may be necessary to make amendments to the 2024 TAD budget. 

 

 

 
Staff Recommendation: 

 

Authorize the Chief Appraiser to proceed with a proposed budget amendment 

through the prescribed manner described in the Texas Property Tax Code  


